
 

 

 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, MARCH 5, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick   leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
  
 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda.  Then then item will be removed from the 

Consent Agenda, and will be separately considered and voted on.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 20, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the Liquor License Renewal for “Casey’s General Store #3463, 

located a 615 S. Downey Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358.   
3. Motion to Approve the Quote by LL Pelling for Spot Repairs and Total Sealcoating of 

the Block between 4th and 5th on East College Street.   
4. Resolution 1690 – Approving the Quote and Contract for Tank Cleaning Services. 
5. Motion to Approve Agreement with Kinder Morgan Cochin LLC for construction of 

the Cubby Park Improvements. 
6. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Resolution 1690 – Approving a contract addendum with Fehr Graham for attending 

meetings related to Cubby Park Improvements during construction. 
2. Motion to Approve Payment of $1,212.50 for Engineering Services for Hoover Trail 

Pedestrian Bridge Consultation.    
3. Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 2017 Hoover’s 

Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of $25,000.00.  
4. Public Hearing: Regarding Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended Budget 

as the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual Budget. 
5. Resolution 1691 – A Resolution adopting the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual Budget. 
6. Resolution 1692 – A Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement to 

perform construction engineering services for College Street Bridge Replacement 
Project. 

7. Resolution 1694 – A Resolution Fixing a Date for Public Hearing to dispose of an 
interest in real property to Croell Inc. (Croell Land Swap). 

8. Resolution 1693 – A Resolution Approving a Variance for Street Width in the 
Meadows subdivision – Part 3B. 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(Special City Council Meeting Minutes)                Consent Item 1 
 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes 

are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               February 20, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Mayor Laughlin was present.  Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman 

and Jordan Ellyson were present. Brian Pierce was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following 

City staff: City Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy City Clerk Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director Matt 

Goodale, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Police Chief Mike Horihan. Park & Recreation Director Melissa 

Russell, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Hoover Hometown Days Budget for FY18 and FY19. 

City Administrator Jones spoke about the Hoover Hometown Days budget (HHTD) and his plan for handling 

HHTD donations.  The Council discussed the plan and expressed mixed opinion as to allowing donations to be 

in an exclusive fund versus current practice of unused donations going to general fund as a offset of HHTD 

expenses.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Special Budget Meeting February 6, 2018. 

2. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 6, 2018. 

3. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 12, 2018. 

4. Motion to Approve the Liquor License for “Brick Arch Winery Liquor License Renewal”, located at 116 W. 

Main Street, West Branch, Iowa  

5. Resolution 1687 – Approving a contract with TruGreen Weed and Grub for work on Lions Field.  

6. Motion to Approve the Main Street Water Main Improvements Pay Estimate No. 4 (final).Approve Claims 

Report and Accept Recently Approved Bond Closing Letter. 

7. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
EXPENDITURES       2/20/2018   
     
AMAZON    BOOKS AND SUPPLIES    491.52  
AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.   TASERS & SUPPLIES    898.22  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   42.98  
BEAVER HEATING AND AIR CON  NEW FURNACE    2,450.00  
BEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAG  PRINTER AND INK    236.97  
BIG COUNTRY SEEDS INC   ICE MELT     906.50  
BLUE BOOK    EQUIPMENT    362.22  
BP AMOCO    FUEL     205.14  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES   BATTERIES & CHARGERS   173.80  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC   HAULING     383.95  
CEDAR COUNTY COOPERATIVE  FUEL     2,240.24  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER  RECORDING FEES    55.00  
CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION  UNIFORM ACCESSORIES  48.78  
COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA I  HIGHWAY SALT    3,475.07  
CROELL, INC.    SAND     767.90  

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

DEWEYS JACK & JILL   REC SUPPLIES, MAINT SUPPLIES    45.21  
FARMERS SUPPLY SALES INC  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   129.46  
FASTENAL    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   273.87  
FEHR GRAHAM    CONSTRUCTION SERVICES   4,099.00  
FUTURE LINE TRUCK EQUIPMEN  SNOW PLOW CUTTING EDGE   1,367.60  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES  GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    1,935.94  
HAWKINS INC    AZONE-CHEMICAL    349.75  
HOSPERS & BROTHER PRINTERS  FIRE DEPT ANNUAL REPORTS    250.20  
IASRO    STEEN CONF 6-19 & 20-2018   125.00  
IOWA ASSOCIATION OF WOMEN  STEEN TRAIN CONF 3-19 &20-2018  85.00  
IOWA MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFF  DUES  L BRICK-18-19    100.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.  RECYCLING JAN 2018    3,804.75  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.   SIREN @ GREENVIEW    155.30  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC   WATER MAIN REPAIR GREENVIEW DRIVE  8,277.70  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC   SERVICE CALL- SHUT OFF WATER   80.00  
MENARDS    SUPPLIES     3.94  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE   VEHICLE REPAIR    1,180.76  
MOORE'S WELDING INC   CUTTING EDGES-SNOW PLOWS   1,010.80  
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC.   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   782.70  
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SC  DUES STEEN 18-19    40.00  
NORTHWAY WELL AND PUMP COM  `MAINTENANCE    4,573.08  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC   REPAIR LIGHT FIXTURES   320.45  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWE  PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER  500.00  
PSC DISTRIBUTION   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   69.42  
SCHIMBERG CO   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   1,001.74  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB   LAB ANALYSIS    52.00  
TOYNES IA. FIRE TRK.SERV   VEHICLE REPAIR    980.68  
TRANS-IOWA EQUIPMENT INC  REPAIR PARTS    995.45  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD  PROGRAM SUPPLIES    63.14  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC  BOOKS, PROGRAM & MAINT SUPPLIES  303.17  
WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED  PHOSPHATE    2,576.06  
WEST BRANCH FIREFIGHTERS  EMS TRAINING    252.00  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS   VEHICLE REPAIR    60.00  
WEST BRANCH TIMES   LEGAL PUB & ADVERTISING   978.06  
WEX BANK    WEX BANK     1,413.09  
     
TOTAL         50,973.61  
     
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS     
     
BEAUTIFUL LAND PRODUCTS  UTILITY REFUND    5.44  
HAGEN,KATHY    UTILITY REFUND    66.91  
UPS     SEWER SHIPPING    20.89  
ALLIANT ENERGY   CITY UTILITIES    8,062.17  
CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL  SUPPLIES     46.94  
JULIA HIME    VIDEOGRAPY SERVICES   200.00  
UPS     SEWER SHIPPING    21.82  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE  LIBRARY COPIER LEASE   59.00  
     
TOTAL         8,483.17  
     
PAYROLL 2-9-2018        39,333.40  
     
TOTAL EXPENDITURES        98,790.18  
     
FUND TOTALS     
001   GENERAL FUND       32,456.10 
022   CIVIC CENTER       1243.09 
031   LIBRARY        9,994.69 
110   ROAD USE TAX       12,488.29 
112   TRUST & AGENCY       4,205.67 
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY      4,099.00 
600   WATER FUND       26,070.96 
610   SEWER FUND       8,232.38 
     -    
GRAND TOTAL         98,790.18 
 



 

 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stoolman to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Ellyson, Stoolman, 

Miller, Goodweiler.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Resolution 1688 – Approving a contract with Needham Excavating for the Cubby Park Improvements./Move 

to action. 

Nate Kass of Fehr-Graham said that Needham, the general contractor, initially intended to cover all 

subcontractors under his insurance policy but now each subcontractor will provide insurance coverage 

including pollution coverage.  Needham will collect all insurance certificates and forward them to Fehr-

Graham.  Nate suggested the contract be approved contingent upon receipt of the subcontractor insurance 

documents.  After discussion, Goodweiler moved to approve Resolution 1688 contingent upon Needham 

providing all of the insurance certificates from his subcontractors and Notice to Proceed will not be granted 

until the agreement from the pipeline company is received.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Stoolman, Miller.  

Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion: To consider adding / combining the West Branch Village Wastewater Treatment Process into the 

City Wastewater Treatment Process.    

Council Person Miller presented some background information on the topic.  He said that West Branch Village 

has two sewer lagoons that will eventually need to be replaced and the city has been notified to enhance its 

wastewater treatment facility.  The idea is that a facility that can handle sewage from both systems would be 

spread over more people at a lower cost than if two separate systems were built and the cost spread over two 

separate entities.  There was discussion on quantifying volumes of effluent from WBV, the best way to meter 

WBV, and how to best obtain the information required for the planning of a new facility.   

 

Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 2017 Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration 

in the Amount of $25,000.00./Move to action. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler, to approve Resolution 1683.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler,  NAYS:  

Stoolman, Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  Motion failed. 

 

Resolution 1689 – A Resolution adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 

2018-2019, and Ordering a Notice of Hearing for March 5, 2018. 

Jones explained the effort that went into the preparation this year.  Over thirty various meetings, reductions in 

departmental budgets and vehicle set asides and an increase in the property tax levy.  He stated that we tried to 

be as transparent as possible. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1689.  AYES:  Ellyson. Stoolman, Goodweiler.  

Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  Miller.  Motion carried.   

 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT  
Jones reported that the Wastewater Task Force will resume activity.  It had to take a break during the budget 

preparation period.  Diversity training for all city employees, including the fire department staff, will be 

conducted tomorrow, February 21 by the Iowa State University Extension staff. He also reviewed the City 

Budget document and announced that a preconstruction conference will be held with Needham and their 

subcontractors on March 6. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Attorney Olson said that he has a conference call scheduled with the General Counsel of Casey’s General 

Stores to get a report on what is happening with Main Street store.  He will report on that at the next Council 

meeting. 

 

 



 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Nick Goodweiler asked about the status of the West Branch Village Bridge.  Dave Schechinger replied that the 

DNR had not issued a permit and it appeared they were continually placing new requirements to be met each 

time we met the previous requirements.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Miller, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City 

Council meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

   

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Gordon R. Edgar, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Liquor License Renewal for “Casey’s 

General Store #3463, located at 615 S. Downey Street, West Branch, 

Iowa 52358. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  February 27, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, Class C 

Carryout Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Casey’s Marketing Company, dba 

Casey’s General Store #3463 at 615 S. Downey Street.  Renewal effective March 31, 2018 

through March 30, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Approval Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Quote of LL Pelling for spot repairs and total 

sealcoating of the block between 4th and 5th on East College Street. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Public Works Director Matt Goodale 

DATE:  February 27, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Prior to all lining and grouting of the sewer lines Visu-Sewer televises to make sure 

everything is clean, get distances for reinstatement of services and check for potential 

issues. During this televising there were a few defects found on East Orange and East 

College Street. These required street removal and digging to repair prior to lining being 

completed. On East College Street a section of pipe that had looked questionable during 

televising collapsed after lining requiring removal and repair. These repairs were all done 

in conjunction with the Phase 2 Lining Project but were not anticipated so were done as 

needed. Lynch Excavating completed these repairs. The LL Pelling invoice is for spot 

repairs and total sealcoating of the block between 4th and 5th on East College Street where 

the sewer main repairs took place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Quote 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

                            Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1690 – Approving the Quote and Contract for Tank 

Cleaning Services.   

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Public Works Director, Matt Goodale. 

DATE:  February 27, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The City of West Branch owns two water towers, 2 clear wells and a sump pit that are all 

part of the water distribution system. These require periodic scheduled maintenance. This 

contract would clean half of those tanks. The other half was cleaned in 2016. There is a 

four year rotation on cleaning. This is a one-time contract with this company for the work 

to be completed.  The contract is for $2,675.00, but it is expected to be amended after the 

work is completed due to the anticipated additional cleaning our tank(s) may need. 

 

    

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Agreement with Kinder Morgan Cochin LLC 

for construction of the Cubby Park Improvements  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  February 27, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

The Encroachment Agreement between the City of West Branch and Kinder Morgan 

Cochin LLC has been submitted for review and approval. This is required to construct the 

Cubby Park Improvements as discussed at previous meetings. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 5 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Encroachment Permit Agreement – West Branch Park – Exhibits A thru D 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  February 27, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve and Accept Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 6 



 

 

   
 



 

 

   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1690 – Approving a contract addendum with Fehr 

Graham for attending meetings related to Cubby Park Improvements 

during construction. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham / Melissa Russell, Parks Director 

DATE:  February 28, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

City staff has requested that a Fehr Graham representative be present at all council 

meetings at which there is an agenda item related to Cubby Park or other meetings as 

requested to advance the project. The original contract only included attendance for certain 

items. For example, there has been a public information meeting scheduled for Cubby Park 

on March 6th. Fehr Graham proposes to bill for this additional time at their current hourly 

rates for time and materials.  See hourly rates in Exhibit E (last sheet in the back ground 

information of this item). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1690 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT ADDENDUM WITH FEHR 

GRAHAM FOR ATTENDING MEETINGS RELATED TO CUBBY PARK 

IMPROVEMENTS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council also contracted with Fehr Graham Engineering and 

Environmental, for engineering and project consulting for the Cubby Park project; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the residents of West Branch approved a bond referendum on 

November 3, 2015 for the funding of the West Branch Park Improvements Project of 

which Cubby Park is a part of; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the demand for public meeting is higher than the original contract 

was accounted; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said contract addendum 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch Iowa that the aforementioned contract addendum to Fehr Graham for 

attending meetings related to Cubby Park Improvements, is hereby approved.  

Furthermore, the Mayor is directed to execute the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 5th day of March, 2018 

 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

This is the Contract that is being requested to be amended: 

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

PEDERSEN VALLEY P ARK IMPROVEMENTS 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 4th day of April, 2016, by and between the City 

of West Branch, a Municipal Corporation, 110 North Poplar Street P.O. Box 218, West Branch, IA 

52358, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY," and Fehr Graham Engineering & Environmental, Inc., 

375  Collins  Road  N.E.,  Suite  105,  Cedar  Rapids,  Iowa  52402,  hereinafter   referred  to  as  the 

"CONSULTANT." 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to make certain park improvements, namely the construction of the 

Pedersen Valley Park (the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to obtain 

professional engineering services for the design of needed improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT was chosen by the CITY after soliciting Requests for Proposals 

from numerous area engineering firms; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is qualified and capable of supplying said professional services 

for a total fee not-to-exceed Two Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars ($260 000). 

 

WHEREAS, accordingly, the CITY has agreed to engage the CONSULTANT as an independent 

contractor to assist in the design and construction of the Project for a total consulting fee not-to-

exceed Two Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars ($260,000) under the terms and conditions set forth 

below. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY AND THE CONSULTANT, FOR 

CONSIDERATION HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 

The CONSULTANT shall perform in a timely and satisfactory manner consistent with standard 

professional practice, the services in connection with the Project as same are set forth in Exhibit 

"A" attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Payment of $1,212.50 for Engineering Services 

for Hoover Trail Pedestrian Bridge Consultation.      

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 28, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Please see attached back ground information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Provide Feedback and Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Background Information 

  

 

 

From: Dallas R. Schechinger  

Sent: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 1:44 PM 

To: David R. Schechinger <dschechinger@v-k.net> 

Subject: West Branch - Pedestrian Bridge 

 

Dave, 

 

I met with Mr. Billings this morning to discuss the West Branch Pedestrian Bridge 

Project.  We discussed the existing Flood Plain Permit for that location.  The existing 

channel through that location use to run through the location where the lagoons are and 

the channel meandered through the area.  When they regraded the site for the lagoons, 

they relocated the channel.  The proposed channel shaping for that project is what that 

permit was based on.  Essentially this means that the channel is to have a bottom width of 

20’ with 3:1 slopes.  I will put this in the model and see if what it does for us, but I don’t 

know how much good it will do us.  I very much got the impression that the DNR will be 

very reluctant to permit this project as proposed.  I don’t necessarily disagree with them 

either.  At the end of the day we are trying to place a bridge with numerous piers at a site 

that currently has no obstructions and make the claim that it will not create any rise in 

backwater.   

 

I have the feeling that we need to talk to the City and discuss their options.  If this 

particular structure is the most important factor to them, then perhaps we need to consider 

a different location.  If the crossing location is the most important factor, then perhaps we 

need to consider a different structure. 

 

I understand that the City had things setup such that this bridge would essentially be free, 

but unfortunately they got the cart in front of the horse on this one.  FRA should not have 

led them so far down this path without a permit. 

 

Let me know how you want to proceed. 

 

Dallas R. Schechinger, P.E. 

 

VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC. 

3000 Westown Parkway 

West Des Moines, Iowa 50266-1320 

Office:   (515) 225-8000 

 
 

mailto:dschechinger@v-k.net


 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 

2017 Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of 

$25,000.00. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administration 

DATE:  March 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 This item was requested to be brought back to the City Council by City 

Councilperson Pierce, who was absent at the February 20th City Council Meeting.  The Fire 

Works Display for Hoover Home Town Days has been under considerable discussion as 

this year’s budget constraints have raised question as to the best use of limited public funds  

 

It has been decreased by $15,000 in total from what was budgeted at $40,000.  With the 

cuts that have been made we were able to fund fireworks in the current budget year; 

however, the fireworks for FY 19 without budgeting for anticipated donations will have a 

$9,000 deficit (unless donations are allowed to be place in separate fund).   

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1683 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS CONTRACTS FOR THE HOOVER’S 

HOMETOWN DAYS CELEBRATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,000. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s premier event of the year is Hoover’s Hometown Days.  

A day that the community recognize the talents and contributions of Our Nation’s 31st 

President of the United States, Herbert Hoover; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2018 – 2019 budget for Hoover’s Hometown Days 

include funding for entertainment and services for the event; and 

 

 WHEREAS, J&M Displays, a firm that has provided this service to the City in 

the past, and have submitted a proposed service agreement in the amount of $25,000 to 

provide a fireworks display in the Herbert Hoover National Historic Site.  J&M Displays, 

also understands and is responsible for submitting all documentation required to gain a 

Special Use Permit from the National Park Service; which will be needed to provide a 

fireworks display in the National Park; and   

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreements are hereby approved.  Further, 

the Mayor is directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 5th day of March, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing – Adopting the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual 

Budget.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

As provided by law our budget process has met the requirements of law. 

Notice of Public Hearing - Budget Estimate:         (Form 631) 

Publication requirements: "not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days   BEFORE the DATE of 
the hearing". The day on which the hearing is held IS NOT used in the 10 and 20 calculation. 
Please allow appropriate time to comply with the code. If the publication does not meet this 
statutory requirement, the notice and hearing MUST be re-done, NO EXCEPTIONS. The budget 
is not compliant with IA Code section 384.16 unless this process is completed. 

 

 
Note that one copy of a Proof of Publication/Affidavit of Posting MUST be sent to and verified by 
the county auditor. By statute, an auditor CANNOT levy property taxes until this proof has been 
provided. Iowa Code 24.10. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 (Form 631) 
Form 631.1 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING   

          BUDGET ESTIMATE   
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2018 - ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

 
     

City of   West Branch , Iowa  

      

   The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Budget at   
110 N Poplar, West Branch, 

IA 

on 3/5/2018 at  7:00 p.m.   

      
The Budget Estimate Summary of proposed receipts and expenditures is shown below.  
Copies of the the detailed proposed Budget may be obtained or viewed at the offices of the Mayor, 

City Clerk, and at the Library.      
The estimated Total tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on regular property  . .  13.09246  
The estimated tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on Agricultural land is     . . . .  3.00375  
At the public hearing, any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of,  
any part of the proposed budget.     

319-643-5888   Redmond Jones II 
phone number 

  City Clerk/Finance Officer's NAME 
      

      Budget FY Re-est. FY Actual FY 

    2019 2018 2017 

      (a) (b)  (c) 

Revenues & Other Financing Sources         

Taxes Levied on Property   1 1,737,833 1,635,553 1,613,353 

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0 

   Net Current Property Taxes 3 1,737,833 1,635,553 1,613,353 

Delinquent Property Taxes   4 0 0 0 

TIF Revenues   5 406,058 250,000 152,449 

Other City Taxes   6 196,570 196,308 271,648 

Licenses & Permits   7 39,500 41,897 25,159 

Use of Money and Property   8 7,000 4,150 19,289 

Intergovernmental   9 1,384,539 645,407 597,068 

Charges for Services   10 1,092,375 1,082,074 1,041,547 

Special Assessments   11 0 0 0 

Miscellaneous   12 36,250 40,910 148,647 

Other Financing Sources   13 165,000 4,200,000 1,894,327 

Transfers In   14 870,185 828,159 889,326 

Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 5,935,310 8,924,458 6,652,813 

           
Expenditures & Other Financing Uses         

Public Safety   16 761,642 1,334,740 592,082 

Public Works   17 396,053 475,000 467,682 

Health and Social Services   18 0 0 0 

Culture and Recreation   19 626,113 644,765 610,792 

Community and Economic Development   20 66,960 87,770 655,123 

General Government   21 186,341 193,317 273,886 

Debt Service    22 1,063,762 741,571 532,538 
Capital Projects   23 4,747,000 1,000,000 1,716,035 

Total Government Activities Expenditures   24 7,847,871 4,477,163 4,848,138 

Business Type / Enterprises   25 740,136 1,244,435 669,566 

Total ALL Expenditures   26 8,588,007 5,721,598 5,517,704 

 Transfers Out   27 870,185 828,159 889,326 

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 9,458,192 6,549,757 6,407,030 

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over          

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -3,522,882 2,374,701 245,783 

Beginning Fund Balance July 1   30 4,972,864 2,598,163 2,352,380 

Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 1,449,982 4,972,864 2,598,163 



 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1689 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S 

RECOMMENDED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019, AND 

ORDERING A NOTICE OF HEARING FOR MARCH 5, 2018.  
 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of a budget is to Plan, Coordinate, Control and Motivate 

through the allocation of resources; and  

 WHEREAS, in the City of West Branch the budgeting process is an important tool for 

monitoring organizational performance and gauging revenues; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the City commended annual budget abides by all state laws and 

requirements. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa that the City Administrator’s final proposed fiscal year 2018-2019 annual budget 

as set forth in the budget summary and certification of taxes and in the detailed budget in support 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1691 – Adopting the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual Budget.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 2, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As provided by law our budget process has met the requirements of State law.  The final fiscal year 

2018 -2019 annual budget set forth in the budget summary and certification of taxes and in the detailed 

budget in support thereof showing revenue estimates and appropriation and allocation of programs for 

said fiscal year are presented for adoption.  Once approved the “City Administrator’s Recommend 

Budget” will be replaced with the “2018 – 2019 Annual Budget”. 
 

Access to On-line Budget: 

 

 
http://westbranchiowa.org/wp-
content/uploads/2018/02/CityAdministratorsRecommendedFY19Budget.pdf 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 

 

Non Consent Item 5 

http://westbranchiowa.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/CityAdministratorsRecommendedFY19Budget.pdf
http://westbranchiowa.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/CityAdministratorsRecommendedFY19Budget.pdf


 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1691 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019, 

ANNUAL BUDGET. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of a budget is to Plan, Coordinate, Control and Motivate 

through the allocation of resources; and  

 WHEREAS, in the City of West Branch the budgeting process is an important tool 

for monitoring organizational performance and gauging revenues; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the annual budget abides by all state laws and requirements. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa: the final fiscal year 2018-2019 annual budget as set forth in the budget 

summary and certification of taxes and in the detailed budget in support thereof showing 

revenues estimates and appropriation expenditures and allocations to programs for said 

fiscal year is adopted.    

Passed and approved this 5th day of March 2018. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1692 – A Resolution Approving a Professional Services 

Agreement to perform construction engineering services for College 

Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The final design for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project has been completed.  

This Supplemental Agreement for Phase IV Construction Engineering is submitted in 

accordance with the provisions of our current Professional Services Agreement dated 

January 28, 2016 and your request for Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. to perform construction 

engineering services.  This project is expected to start this calendar year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1692 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO 

PERFORM CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR COLLEGE 

STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is interested in having strong infrastructure 

and having safe modes of transportation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the final design for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project 

has been completed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Supplemental Agreement for Phase IV Construction 

Engineering was submitted in accordance with the provisions of our current Professional 

Services Agreement with Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. dated January 28, 2016: and  

 

WHEREAS, it was at the City’s request for Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. to perform 

construction engineering services.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa: authorize and direct the execution of a professional services agreement 

to perform construction engineering services for College Street Bridge Replacement 

Project.    

 

Passed and approved this 5th day of March 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1694 – Fixing a Date for Public Hearing: to Dispose of 

an interest in real property to Croell Inc. (Croell Land Swap). 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Said public hearing shall be to consider the intent of disposing of the City’s interest in the Lot 

A of Lot 4, according to the Plat of Survey recorded in Book J, page 212, Records of the 

Cedar County Recorder’s Office in West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa in West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution  
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1694 

 

ORDERING NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON INTENT 

TO DISPOSE OF AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY TO 

CROELL INC. 

 

WHEREAS, the City and Croell, Inc., previously entered a Land Exchange 

Agreement, dated May 2, 2016, whereby the Croell would move its current operations on 

Main Street to a location adjacent to Fawcett Drive owned by the City and Croell would 

convey its current land to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Croell is finalizing its move to the new location; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 364.7 of the Code of Iowa requires a public hearing prior to 

the disposal of an interest in real property, 

        

 NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that a public hearing will be held at 7:00 o’clock pm on Monday, March 19, 2018 at 

City Hall.  Further, the Deputy City Clerk is hereby directed to publish a public hearing 

notice in the West Branch Times as required by law. 

Passed and approved this 5th day of March, 2018. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1693 – A Resolution Approving a Variance for Street 

Width in the Meadows subdivision – Part 3B 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The final design for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project has been completed.  

This Supplemental Agreement for Phase IV Construction Engineering is submitted in 

accordance with the provisions of our current Professional Services Agreement dated 

January 28, 2016 and your request for Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. to perform construction 

engineering services.  This project is expected to start this calendar year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1693 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE FOR STREET WIDTH IN THE 

MEADOWS SUBDIVISION - PART 3B 

 

WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”), is the owner of that certain parcel 

of real estate generally referred to as the Meadows Subdivision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, KLM has submitted a preliminary plat for the Meadows Subdivision 

– Part 3B, West Branch, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s subdivision regulations, street right-of-

way widths for collector streets are 66 feet wide with 34-feet of pavement and 5-foot 

sidewalks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. is requesting a variance to allow them to 

install Dawson Drive as a 31-foot wide street; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s subdivision regulations also state that in the case of a 

particular proposed subdivision, it can be shown that strict compliance with the 

requirements of this chapter would result in extraordinary hardship to the subdivider, 

because of unusual topography or other conditions, the Council may vary, modify or waive 

the requirements so that substantial justice may be done and the public interest secured. 

Provided, however, such variance, modification or waiver will not have the effect of 

nullifying the intent and purpose of this chapter. In no case shall any variance or 

modification be more than minimum easing of the requirements, and in no instance shall it 

be in conflict with any zoning ordinance and such variances and waivers may be granted 

only by the affirmative vote of four-fifths (4/5) of the members of the Council, and must 

conform to Zoning Ordinance and State Code regarding granting of variances by the Board 

of Adjustment; and 
  
 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to formally approve said 

variance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned variance be and the same is hereby approved.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 5th day of March, 2018. 

      

   

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 


